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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT 

The Board of Conunissioners of the 
Port of New Orleans: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Port of New Orleans (the Port) as of June 30,2013 and 2012 and the related notes 
to the Randal statements, whkh collectively comprise the Port's basic fmancial statemente as listed in 
the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Manag^ent is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accotmting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free irom material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or 
error. 

Auditors* Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these fmancial statements based on our audits. We conducted 
our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
die standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Starulards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opmion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accountmg 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe Aat the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 
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opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
fmancial position of the Port as of June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the results of its operations and its cash 
fiows for the years then ended m conform]^ with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Other Matters 

Required Siqfplementofy Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in tiie United States of America require that the Management's 
Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 11 and the Schedules of Funding Progress presented on page 
49 and SO be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a 
part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Govemmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements hi an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context We have applied certain Ihnited procedures to 
the required supplementary infonnation in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the mformation and comparing the information for consistency with manag^ent's responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because 
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any 
assurance. 

Other ReportiDg Required by Government Auditiite Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 18, 
2013, on our consideration of the Port's mtemal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its 
complianoe with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of mtemal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and die results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
intemal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the Port's internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
September 18,2013 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

This section of the Board of Commissioners of tlie Port of New Orleans (the Board) annual financial 
report presents a discussion and analysis of the Board's financial performance for the Fiscal Year ended 
June 30, 2013. Please read it in conjunction with the Board's financial statements, which follow this 
section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The Board's fmancial performance for Fiscal Year 2013 is highlighted by stronger operating revenue 
generation for the third year in a row. Operating revenue was in excess of $50 million for the first time 
in the Board's history. Operating expense increased as well for Fiscal Year 2013, This combination 
produced net operating income of $12.5 million before depreciation. The increase in overall operating 
revenue was due to increases in cmise passenger revenue and real estate. Higher volumes of passengers 
sailed from the Port of New Orieans as demand for cruising vacations increased. This demand was 
accommodated by Ihe cruise lines with the replacement of lower capacity vessels with larger vessels. 
The real estate revenue increased as new leases were entered into as well as certain increases in rates on 
current leaseholds. The Board's net assets increased $4.5 million resulting primarily from capital 
revenue from state and federal sources offset by an operating loss. In comparison. Fiscal Year 2012 had 
an Increase of $48.3 million in net assets as the operating loss and non-operating expenses were offset by 
significant capital contributions. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCUL STATEMENTS 

This financial report consists of four parts: management's discussion and analysis (this section), the basic 
financial statements, the notes to the fmancial statements and reports on compliance and intemal control 
over financial reporting and federal programs. 

The Board's financial statements are prepared on an accrual basis in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to govemment units. 
Under this basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are eamed, expenses 
are recognized in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets. All assets and liabilities associated whh 
the operation of the Board are included in the Statement of Net Assets. 

The financial statements provide both long and short-term information about the Board's overall 
financial status. The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the 
financial statements and provide more detailed data. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Net Assets 

The Board's total assets at June 30, 2013 are $733.7 million. This represents a decrease of $9.9 million 
or 1.3 percent from the prior year. Total liabilities are $144.1 million for a decrease of $14.4 million or 
9.0 percent. Total net position is S589.6 million, an increase of approximately $4.5 million or 0.8 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANP ANALYSIS 

percent. The comparison of Fiscal Year 2012 to 2011 indicated an increase for 2012 of $62.6 million in 
total assets and an increase of S48.3 million in net position. (See Table 1). 

The item, "Invested m capital assets, net of related debt,*" consists of capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation and reduced by the amount of outstanding indebtedness (offset by the debt related to 
unspent bond proceeds) attributable to the acquisition, consdiiction, or improvement of those assets. 

Current assets 
Restricted assets 
Property (net) 
Other assets 
Total assets 

Current liabilities 
Non-current liabilities 
Total liabilities 

Net position: 
bivested in capital assets, net of relate 
Restricted 
Unrestricted 
Total net position 
Total liabilities and net position 

(in 

Kidebt 

T 
thousa 

Net 

$ 

K 
$ 

s" 

ablel 
ndsofdolli 
Position 

2Q13 

92.996 
27,362 

612,012 
1,352 

733,722 

19,790 
124,288 
144.078 

505,588 
27,362 
56,694 

589,644 
733,722 

irs) 

$ 

$ 

2012 

86,268 
42,920 

611,280 
3,134 

743,602 

15,869 
142,612 
158.481 

487,306 
42,920 
54,895 

585,121 
743,602 

Percentage 
Chflnuc . -

7.8%$ 
-36.2% 

0.1% 
-56.9% 

-1.3% S " 

24.7% $ 
-12.8% 

-9.1% I 

3.8% 
-36.2% 

3.3% 
0.8% 

-1 .3%$" 

2011 _ 

73,442 
27,378 

572,073 
3,129 

681,0221 

17,325 
126,886 
1H21 

463,497 
27,378 
45,937 

536,812 
681,023 

Current assets increased as collections significantly rose on grant funds under the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) program for construction projects completed in prior years. Tliese 
collections caused an increase in cash and investment of $26.3 million. As these collections accelerated, 
the govemment accounts receivable decreased at year end Fiscal Year 2013 offsetting some of the cash 
and investment fund increases as current assets increased $6.7 million. Mon-current assets decreased by 
$ 16.6 million. Restricted assets from the refunding of the Board*s Revenue Bond Issue 2002 spanned the 
year end June 30,2012, the sale of which in 2013, caused a $ 15.6 million decrease in restricted assets. 

Current liabilities increased $3.9 million when compared to Fiscal Year 20I2» as constmction accruals 
for accounts payable in Fiscal Year 2013 were higher than in Fiscal Year 2012. Further, other current 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

liabilities decreased S2.4 million as construction retainage was paid on a number of large constmction 
projects completed in Fiscal Year 2013. 

Non-current liabilities decreased $18.3 million mainly due to a liability at year end 2012 for the 
refimding of the 2002 Bond Issue being eliminated in Fiscal Year 2013. 

In Fiscal Year 2012 as compared to Fiscal Year 2011, current assets increased as govemment and trade 
accounts receivable were significantly higher. These increases were somewhat reduced as cash and 
investments were used to ftind the strong capital improvement program. Non-current assets increased 
over Fiscal Year 2011 for two main reasons. First, restricted assets increased as Uie refimding of the 
Board^s Revenue Bond Issue 2002 spanned the year end causing $15.0 million of bond proceeds to be 
held in restricted assets at June 30, 2012. The 2002 Issue was refunded on July 6, 2012. Second, Uie 
expenditures for the capital improvement program resulted in a net property increase of $39.2 million. 

Further, in Fiscal Year 2012, current liabilities decreased $1.5 million when compared to Fiscal Year 
2011, as constmction accruals for accounts payable m Fiscal Year 2012 were significantly lower than in 
Fiscal Year 2011. 

Restricted ftmds totaling $20.8 million result from an agreement entered into by the Board with the U.S. 
Army Corps of Engineers (USACOE) for the redevelopment of an existing lock connectmg the 
Mississippi River to the Inner-Harbor Navigation Canal (IHNC). The Board agreed to fimd a portion of 
the constmction project as it relates to providing deep-draft access. The USACOE made payments to the 
Board for acquiring certain Board property needed to expand the existing lock. Such funds are to be held 
in an escrow account by the Board until such time as they are needed to pay for the deep-drafi portion of 
die constmction project. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Table 2 
Changes In Net Position 
(in thousands of dollars) 

2013 
Operating Revenues: 

Terminal operations 

Cruise and tourism 

Real estate 

Total operating revenues 

Operating Expenses: 

Operatmg expenses 

35,212 

10,426 

5,580 

51,218 

38,748 

2012 

35,104 

9,399 

4,005 

48,508 

36355 

Percentflse 

Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

Opotiting loss 

Non-operating revenues/(expenses), net 

Investment income 

Interest expense 

Federal non-capital grants 

Hurricane gain (loss) 

Gain (loss) on sale of assets 

Loss on asset {mpairment 

Forgiveness of debt 
Demolition costs 

Miscellaneous - net 
Income (loss) before conuibutions 

Capital revenue from state and federal 
programs 

Change m net position 

Total net position, beginning of the year 

Total net position, end of year 

24,009 

62,757 

(11^39) 

144 
(5.448) 

-

(273) 

1,565 

-
* 

(631) 
(184) 

(16,366) 

20,889 

4,523 

585,121 

$ 589,644 

21,009 
57,364 

(8,856) 

421 
(5,521) 

-

(867) 

567 
-

-

(1,592) 

(693) 

(16.541) 

64.850 

48309 

536,812 

585,121 

0.3% $ 

10.9% 

393% 

5.6% 

6.6% 

14.3% 

9.4% 

-30.3% 

-65.8% 

2011 

32,856 
6,837 
3.711 

43,404 

33,294 

19,639 

52,933 

(9^29) 

362 
-1.3% 

0.0% 

-68.5% 

176.0% 

0.0% 

-60.4% 

-73.4% 

-M% 

^7.8% 

-90.6% 

9.0% 

0.8% S 

(5.122) 

108 
1,668 

738 

8,473 
(1.812) 

(256) 

(5,370) 

24,375 

19,005 

517,807 

536,812 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Changes in Net Positton 

The change in net position for tite year ended June 30, 2013, when compared to the change in net 
position for the year ended June 30,2012, is a decrease of $43.8 million or 90.6 percent. The operating 
revenue increases, mainly from Cruise and Tourism and Real Estate, were offset by increase in operating 
expenses as depreciation increase by S3.0 million. These components resulted in a $2.7 million increase 
in operating loss. The difference in non-operating revenues resulted in the net income before capital 
contributions loss to be very close to equal for Fiscal Years 2012 and 2013. A reduction in capital 
contributions for Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012 resulted in the $44.0 reduction in 
change in net assets. The changes in net assets are detailed in Table 2 and operating expenses are 
detailed in Table 3. 

In Fiscal Year 2012, versus Fiscal Year 2011, the change in net assets for the year was an increase of 
$29.3 million or 154,2 percent. The Board's total operating revenues increased $5.1 million or 11.8 
percent. This increase is due to the higher volumes of containerized and breakbulk cargo, two successive 
years of tariff increases and an increase in ocean-going cruise passengers. Total operating expenses 
increased $4.4 million or 8.4 percent. 

hi the area of non-operating revenue and expense. Fiscal Year 2013 was higher by $2.9 million or 37.2 
percent. This was mainly due to higher demolition costs in Fiscal Year 2012 and a higher gam on sale of 
assets in Fiscal Year 2013. 

For non-operating revenue and expense in Fiscal Year 2012 versus Fiscal Year 2011,2012 was lower by 
$ \ \ 2 million or 208.0 percent This was mainly due to the forgiveness of the FEMA Community 
Disaster Loan debt in Fiscal Year 2011 and the recording of a hurricane loss in Fiscal Year 2012 as 
opposed to a net gain in 2011. 

As mentioned above, capital contributions were lower by $44.0 million in Fiscal Year 2013 vereus Fiscal 
Year 2012 as there were a number of major construction projects completed in Fiscal Year 2012, a cold 
storage facility and two new cranes, that were reimbursed with state and federal funds. 

Capital conh-ibutions were higher by $40.5 million in Fiscal Year 2012 versus Fiscal Year 2011 with 
significant increases due to the construction of a cold storage facility, two new cranes and higher 
collections of FEMA funds. 
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NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Table 3 
Operating Expenses 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Labor and fringe benefits 
Fuel and utilities 
Supplies 
Maintenance agreements 
Purchased services 
Rent - real estate and equipment 
Contract labor services 
Travel, promotion and advertising 
Electronic data service sut>scription 
Training 
Professional fees 
Maintenance 
Insurance 
'Workers* compensation 
Security fee reimbursemem 
Odier 
Depreciation 
Less capitalized labor 
Total operating expenses 

2013 2012 

62,757 S 57J64 

Percentage 
Change 

25,303 $ 
2,792 

305 
518 
169 
276 
801 

1,134 
94 
72 

1,497 
2,256 
5,330 

390 
(854) 

203 
24.009 
(1,538) 

24,565 
2.684 

342 
419 
149 
309 
769 

1,076 
102 
38 

959 
2,282 
4,638 

275 
(664) 

220 
21,009 
(1,808) 

3.0% 
4.0% 

-10.9% 
23.7% 
13.5% 

-10.7% 
4.2% 
5J% 

-7.9% 
88.9% 
56.2% 
-1.1% 
14.9% 
41.8% 
28.7% 
-7.6% 
14.3% 

-14.9% 
9.4% $ 

2011 

22.253 
2,354 

289 
436 
113 
453 
809 
794 
tot 
25 

925 
2,102 
4,796 

275 
(454) 

201 
19,639 

(2.178) 
52.933 

The total increase in operating expense, when comparing Fiscal Year 2013 to Fiscal Year 2012, is 
approximately $5.4 million or 9.4 percent. The major categories of increases were labor and fringe 
benefits, maintenance agreements, training, professional fees, insurance, workers' compensation, and 
depreciation. Significant areas of reduction were rent, and an increase in security fee reimbursements 
causing a reduction in operating expense. 

Labor and fringe benefits increased in 2013 by $738,000 or 3.0 percent. Salaries were higher by 
$630,000. The payroll increases were due mainly to merit increases, three additional positions and filling 
of number of positions tiiat were vacant during Fiscal Year 2012. In fringe benefits, contributions for the 
State LASERS retirement and Harbor Police Department pension programs increased resulting in 
5683,000 additional costs for Fiscal Year 2013. These increases were lowered by a reduction in health 
care costs of $438,000 from lower premiums from the provider. 

Labor and fringe benefits increased in 2012 over Fiscal Year 2011 by $2.3 million or 10.4 percent. 
Salaries were higher by $698,000. Overtime increased by 5291,000 as crane operations had more hours 
due to higher volumes and cruise operations had more overtime due to the addition of a second cruise 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

terminal with no increase in staff in Fiscal Year 2012. In fiinge benefits, contributions for the State 
LASERS retirement program increased as well as the Harbor Police Department pension program 
resulting in a 51.4 million increase in Fiscal Year 2012. The reinstatement of the deferred compensation 
program added anotiier $263,000 to fringe benefits for Fiscal Year 2012 as related to Fiscal Year 2011. 

Maintenance agreements increased $99,000 in Fiscal Year 2013 over Fiscal Year 2012. The increase 
was mainly due to agreements for computer equipment coming out of warranty, increase cost for the 
Board's general ledger maintenance package and for the HVAC system in the newly renovated Julia 
Avenue Cruise Terminal. Maintenance agreements for Fiscal Year 2012 versus Fiscal Year 2011 were 
not significantly different. 

Training expense increase approximately $34,000 m Fiscal Year 2013 or 88.9 percent. The increase was 
in three main areas - system software support, training for operation of the Board's new cranes and the 
start of a masters degree program by an employee. 

Professional fees increased $538,000 in Fiscal Year 2013 compared to Fiscal Year 2012. The main 
reasons were two significant cases in litigation and protracted negotiations for a major pending lease 
causing the legal fees to Increase by $399,000. Another $88,000 increase resulted from professional fees 
for the Board's consultant on the disadvantaged business enterprise program. Further, professional fees 
for the Tokyo office were increased resulting in an additional $40,000. Professional appraisals of 
Board's property increase in Fiscal Year 2013 adding anotiier $26,000 to the expense. Professional fees 
for Fiscal Year 2012 versus Fiscal Year 2011 were not significantly different. 

Insurance expense increased $692,000 in Fiscal Year 2013 versus Fiscal Year 2012 as rates for property 
insurance increased due to a number of hurricanes causing significant destruction in the last two years. 
The comparison of Fiscal Year 2012 to Fiscal Year 2011 was a reduction of expense of 5158,000 as rates 
continued to ease with the passage of time from the devastation of major storms, hurricanes Katrina and 
Rita. 

Expense for workers' compensation increased in Fiscal Year 2013 as tliere were a number of significant 
surgeries due to on the job accidents. Two of the more serious surgeries were for separate employee's 
back and hand. Fiscal Year 2012 workers' compensation expense was almost equal to that of Fiscal Year 
2011. 

Depreciation increased $3.0 million in Fiscal Year 2013 as a number of major capital projects were 
placed in service for tiie Fiscal Year 2013 lime period, including the cold storage facility and two new 
cranes. Similariy, depreciation increased $1.4 million in Fiscal Year 2012 versus Fiscal Year 2011 as a 
new dredge, major improvements to the Alabo cargo facility and a wireless radio system began 
depreciation in Fiscal Year 2012. 

Rent decreased by $33,000 when compared to Fiscal Year 2012 as a previous agreement renegotiated 
witii the Maritime Administration for the Board's lease of tiie Poland Avenue ftirther reduced the annual 
rent following on a $144,000 reduction from Fiscal Year 2011 to Fiscal Year 2012. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

In March of 2012 tariff rates for cargo operations increased as well as related security fees, which the 
Port and terminal operators charge customers for security related expenses. A full year of these 
increases resulted in Fiscal Year 2013 being $190,000 higher in security fees, which is a reduction to 
security operating expense. 

In Fiscal Year 2012 versus Fiscal Year 2011 security related expenses increase by $210,000 as tariff rates 
increased in March of botii 2011 and 2012 and cargo volumes and related activities on which security 
fees are charged increased. 

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 
As of June 30, 2013, the Board had invested $612.0 million in capital assets net of accumulated 
depreciation. As compared to the prior year, this amount represents an increase (including additions and 
disposals) of $732,000. Property increased during 2012 when compared to 2011 with the addition of a 
net S39.2 million of capital assets. 

Debt Administration 

The Board made its regularly scheduled payments on its Port Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2002, 
Series 2003, Series 2008, Series 2010, Scries 2011, Series 2012 and Series 2013A&B. Total bond debt 
payments for the Fiscal Year 2013 was $4.7 million. 

During Fiscal Year 2013 the Board completed the refunding and refinancing of the Series 2002 and 
series 2003 with the issue of Series 2012, Series 2013A and Series 2013B. 

Under the terms of its capital leases for the container cranes and for computer equipment, the Board 
made lease payments of approximately $972,000 including principal and interest. 

All bond debt and lease covenants have been met. 

Tlie Board commenced payments in Fiscal Year 2012 on the $14.4 million of debt assistance provided by 
the State of Louisiana under the Gulf Opportunity Zone Act of 2005 (GO Zone). Payments of $1.3 
million of principal and interest during Fiscal Year 2013 continued as provided for under the GO Zone 
agreement. 

Additional detailed information relating to capital assets and debt administration is presented in the 
financial statements and notes number 4, "Property, Net" and 5, "Non-Cuntjnt Liabilities". 
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ECONOMIC FACTORS 

The cargo results for Fiscal Year 2013 are reflective of the very slow economic growth in the U.S. 
economy during the same period. General Cargo volumes for Fiscal Year 2013 had a slight decrease 
compared to Fiscal Year 2012 afler two prior years of increases. These prior increase were on the 
strengtii of container operations with Mediterranean Shipping Company (MSC) committed to adding 
volumes to its New Orleans calls. The cargo volumes for Fiscal Year 2013 resulted in almost matching 
revenue to Fiscal Year 2012 for Terminal Operations of the Board. However, strong increases in cruise 
and real estate areas of the Board caused an increase of $2.6 million in operating revenue. 

Specifically, related to cargo volumes, Port container tonnage decreased 172,000 tons or 4.1 percent 
when comparing Fiscal Year 2012. Breakbulk, in Fiscal Year 2013 had a third year of increased tonnage 
after a number of years of decline. Breakbulk increased 80,000 tons or 2.9 percent. Thus, total Board-
owned facilities' general cargo decreased 92,000 tons or 1.3 percent in Fiscal Year 2013. In comparison. 
Fiscal Year 2012 general cargo tonnage increased 397,000 or 6.1 percent over Fiscal Year 2011, Furtiier, 
in Fiscal Year 2011 as well as Fiscal Year 2012, the Board increased fees charged for dockage, harbor 
dues and container crane rental by an overall 10.0 percent and 7.5 percent respectively, assisting with 
revenue increases and stability. 

The cruise business sector continued to grow in Fiscal Year 2013. Passenger volumes increase by 
approximately 152,000 from Fiscal Year 2012 to Fiscal Year 2013 resulting in increases in passenger 
wharfage and parking revenue. Further in November of 2012, Royal Caribbean Cruise Line replaced the 
Voyager of tiie Seas with the Navigator of tiie Seas, tiie largest vessel to ever homeport in New Orleans. 

In the area of real estate, five new leases and one lease with significant increases in variable rent in Fiscal 
Year 2013 resulted in a $1.2 million addition in revenue as compared to Fiscal Year 2012. Increases in 
rates on otiier leases caused the total increase to be approximately 51.6 million or 39.3%. 

CONTACTING THE BOARD'S FINANCL\L MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our bondholders, the public, patrons, and other interested 
parties with a general overview of the Board's finances and to demonstrate tiie Board's accountability for 
the fiinds received. If you have any questions about tiiis report or need additional financial information, 
contact the Board at (504) 528-3346. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OP NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSFTION 
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

Page 1 of 2 

2013 2012 

CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Accounts receivable, less allowance for 

doubtfiji accounts of $626,308 and $965,622 
at June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively 

Due fiom otiier governments 
Stores inventory 
Prepaid items 

Total current assets 

NON-CURRENT ASSETS 
Restricted cash, cash equivalents, and investments: 

Revenue bond covenant accounts 
Deep draft lock escrow 

Total restricted assets 
Property - net 
Other assets 

Total non-current assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

A S S E T S 

$ 52,549^50 $ 26,186,485 
21,908,484 21,988,557 

5,145,470 
3.625,878 
5,454,618 
4,312,770 

6,683,662 
21,782,366 

5,485,273 
4,141,284 

92,996,470 

6,602,588 
20,759,044 
27,361,632 

612,012,069 
1,352,296 

640,725,997 

733.722,467 

86,267,627 

22,137,434 
20,782.795 
42,920,229 

611,280,239 
3,133,809 

657,334.277 

743,601,904 

L I A B I L I T I E S 

CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Revenue bonds payable - current 
Debt service assistance program loan payable - current 
Capital leases payable - current 
Accrued interest payable 
Unearned income 
Other liabilities 

Total current liabilities 

10.847,006 
1,520.000 

715,683 
984^76 

1,282,832 
2.097.554 
2.342,351 

19,789,702 

5,800.194 
325,000 
683,947 
969.820 

1,344,107 
2,031.326 
4,714,880 

15,869,274 

(Continued) 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - CONTINUED 
JUNE 30.2013 AND 2012 

Page 2 of2 

2013 2012 

LIABlLITIESrcont inued^ 

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds payable 
Debt service assistance program loan payable 
Capital leases payable 
Net pension obligation 
Post-employment benefit obligation 
Compensated absences payable 

Total non-current liabilities 

102,333,615 
12,966,049 
1,586,612 
3,639,799 
2,166.915 
1,595,618 

119,996.478 
13,681,732 
2,683,370 
2.658.112 
1.889,518 
1,702,613 

124,288,608 142,611,823 

TOTAL LIABILmES 144,078310 158,481,097 

N E T P O S I T I O N 

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for revenue bond debt service 
Restricted for deep drafi lock 
Unrestricted 

TOTAL NET POSmON 

505,587,566 
6,602,588 

20,759,044 
56.694,959 

487,305,571 
22,137,434 
20,782,795 
54.895,007 

$ 589,644,157 $ 585,120,807 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

Page 1 of2 

2013 2012 
OPERATING REVENUES 

Terminal operations: 
Dockage 
Rentals 
Harbor fees 
Container cranes 
Other 

Total terminal operations 

8,888,377 
19,837,070 
1.619,734 
3,804,246 
1,062,613 

9,212,107 
18,500,158 
1,737^78 
4,078,451 
1,576394 

35,212,040 35,104,488 

Cruise and tourism 
Real estate rentals 

Total operating revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Operations services: 

Port development 
Port operations 
Cruise and tourism 
Marketing 

Total operations services 
Management services: 

Finance and information services 
Administration Services 
Legal and risk 
Business development 

Total management services 

10,426,000 
5,579,911 

51,217,951 

9,398,610 
4,005,140 

48,508,238 

10,228,048 
13,309,276 
2,524,421 
2,218,632 

28;280.377 

2,344,150 
2,348,537 
2,141,083 

716,442 
7,550,212 

9,575,778 
12,817,976 
2,438,669 
2,185,038 

27,017,461 

2,175,661 
2,115,218 
1.489,312 

636,749 
6,416,940 

(Continued) 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISUNA 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND 
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - CONTINUED 

YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2013 AND 2012 

Page 2 of2 

2013 2012 
Other operating: 

Executive 
Workers' compensation and self insured claims 

Total other operating 
Depreciation 

Total operating expenses 

OPERATING LOSS 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 
Interest expense 
Hurricane gain (loss) 
Gain on disposal of assets 
Demolition costs 
Miscellaneous - net 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) 

LOSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTIONS 

C APTfAL CONTRIBUTIONS 

CHANGE IN NET POSFTION 

NET POSITION. BEGINNING OF YEAR 

NET POSITION, END OF YEAR 

2,526,770 
390,702 

2,917,472 
24,009,378 
62,757,439 

(11,539,488) 

144,548 
(5,448,274) 

(273,046) 
1,564,554 
(631,498) 
(182,640) 

(4,826,356) 

(16,365,844) 

20,889,194 

4,523,350 

585,120,807 

$ 589,644,157 

2.645,656 
274,874 

2,920,530 
21,009386 
57,364317 

(8.856,079) 

420,625 
(5,520,713) 

(867,406) 
567,517 

(1,591,669) 
(692,847) 

(7,684.493) 

(16.540,572) 

64,849,816 

48,309,244 

536,811,563 

$ 585,120,807 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2013 AND 2012 

Page 1 of2 

2013 2012 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Receipts firom customers and users 
Payments to suppliers 
Payments to employees 
Payments of benefits on behalfof employees 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED 
FINANCING ACTiyrriES: 

Expenditures for acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Proceeds from sales of capital assets 
Capital contributions from other governments 
Proceeds firom refinancing of bonds 
Payment on refunded bonds 
Repayments of principal borrov̂ *ed to finance acquisition 

and constmction of capital assets 
Interest paid on amounts to finance acquisition and 

construction of capital assets 
Payments for bond issuance costs 
Demolition costs and other 
Hurricane (costs) proceeds 

Net cash used in capital and related 
financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES! 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 
Investment income received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

52.915.910 
(15.303,416) 
(17,182,192) 

(7.588,912) 
12.841,390 

(686,171) 

46,525,484 
(20.672,978) 
(15.451,711) 

(6.304,345) 
4,096,450 

(26,749,279) 
1,564.554 

46,275,062 
44,010,000 

(60,485,000) 

(58,406,109) 
829,598 

49,949,090 
15,495.000 

-

(976.251) 

(3.982.633) 
(778,486) 

(M53,452) 
(273,046) 

(2,258.451) 

(12.194.286) 
12,298,110 

141,156 
244.980 

(4.919,543) 
(277,244) 

(2,300,130) 
(867.409) 

(1,472.998) 

(13,237,449) 
18,003,212 

413.806 
5.179,569 

(Continued) 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - CONTINUED 
YEARS ENDED JUNE 30.2013 AND 2012 

NET INCREASE rOECREASE^ IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS. END OF YEAR 

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS PROM OPERATIONS TO 
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES: 

Operating loss 
Ac(justments to reconcile loss firom operations to net cash 

provided by operating activities; 
Depreciation 
Changes in assets and liabilities relating to operating 

activities: 
Accounts and insurance receivable 
Stores inventories 
Prepaid items 
Other assets 
Accounts payable 
Unearned income 
Other liabilities 
Net pension obligation 
Post-employment benefit obligation 
Compensated absences payable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

RECONCILIATION TO STATEMENTS OF NET ASSETS: 
Cash and cash equivalents fbr cash flow statements include: 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted assets: 

Restricted for revenue bond debt service 
Total cash and cash equivalents 

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NON-CASH FLOW 
INFORMATION: 

Noncash capital acquisitions by lease 

Noncash increase (decrease) in fair value of investments 

Tlw accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 
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2013 

738.267 

398.826 

Page 2 of 2 

2012 

10.827.919 

48.323.919 

S 59.151,838 $ 

S (11,539.488) S 

24.009,378 

1,880,898 
30.655 

(171,486) 
(249,167) 

(2,182,568) 
66.228 

(155,149) 
981,687 
277,397 

(106,995) 
$ 12,841.390 $ 

52.549,250 

6.602,588 
$ 59.151.838 $ 

7.803.024 

40420,895 

48.323.919 

(8,856.079) 

21,009,386 

(2,214,569) 
(2.723,240) 

(469,777) 
(281.667) 

(4,285,394) 
513.482 

(4.672) 
884,418 
310.148 
214.414 

4.096,450 

26.186.485 

22,137,434 
48323.919 

738,267 

(82.432) 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISTANA 

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

L ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

The Board of Commissioners of the Port of Nevw Orleans (the Port) is an independent political 
subdivision of the State of Louisiana, which is authorized by Louisiana Revised Statutes 34:1-47. 
The Port is governed by a Board of Commissioners (the Board) consisting of se\'en members 
appointed by the Governor. The Board has all the powers and privileges granted to it by the 
constitution and statutes of the State of Louisiana including, but not limited to, the authority to 
incur debt, to issue bonds, to construct and maintain wharves and landings, and to charge fees for 
the use of the wharves and other facilhies administered b>' the Port. 

The Port prepares its financial statements in accordance with standards issued by the Govemmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

The Port is reported as a stand-alone entity as defmed by GASB Statements No. 34 and 61, relating 
to the financial reporting entity. The Port is neither fiscally dependent on any other local 
government nor does it provide specific financial benefits to or impose specific financial burdens on 
any other govemment No other potential component units meet the criteria for inclusion in the 
financial statements of the Port. 

M^snrcment Focna. Basis Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The accounting policies of the Port conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America as applicable to gpvermtients. The govemment-wide and proprietary 
fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when eamed and expenses, excluding 
depreciation and amortization, are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of 
the related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

The Port's accounts are organized into a single proprietary tnnd. The Port*s operations are financed 
and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The intent of the governing body 
is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services on a continuing basis 1:̂  
financed or recovered primarily through user charges. Operating revenues and expenses are 
distinguished from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from 
leasing properties or providing services. Operating expenses include the cost of providing services, 
administrative services and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting 
this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Port's policy to use 
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCLVL STATEMENTS 

L ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continncd) 

Measarement Focus, Basis Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation fcontinncd) 

Under the provisions of GASB Statement 62, Codification ofAccowfting and Financial Reporting 
Guidance Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, the Port 
applies all applicable Financial Accounting Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989 in accoumtng for its operations unless those pronouncements conflict or 
contradict GASB pronouncements. 

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Investments 

Investments of the Port, substantially all of which have original maturities of two years or less, are 
recorded at fair value. Fair value is based on quoted market prices. 

Stores Inventory 

The inventory of the Port consists of expendable materials, supplies and fuel and is valued at the 
lov^er of average cost or maricet 

Restricted Assets 

Under an agreement with the Corps of Engineers (Corps) the proceeds of land sales to the Corps in 
2002 and 2003 have been put into an escrow fund to be used to pay the Port's share of a deep draf) 
lock on the biner Harbor Navigation Canal. Gains on the sales of land of approximately 
$10,100,000 and $5,600,000 were recognized for the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002 
respectively. Interest income related to these restricted assets was $281,328 and $169,951 for the 
years ended June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Certain proceeds of the Port's revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their 
repayment, are classified as restricted assets because they are maintained in separate investment 
accounts and their use is limited by applicable bond requirements. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

L ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAf*rr ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued^ 

Property and Depreciation 

The Port capitalizes assets that have an individual cost of $500 or more and an estimated useful life 
in excess of one year. Property constructed or acquired by purchase is stated at cost. Donated 
property is stated at the estimated fair value on the date received. 

Depreciation of property and amortization of capital lease assets is computed using the straiglu-line 
method over the following estimated useful lives: 

Wharves and sheds 30-50 years 
Roadways and drainage 20 years 
Marshalling areas 15 years 
Buildings IS-40 years 
Machinery and equipment 3 - 4 0 years 

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital asset and improvements are 
capitalized as projects are constructed. The Port's policy is to capitalize construction period 
interest, if any. For fixed assets purchased with externally restricted debt, capitalized interest is the 
difference between interest expense and interest earnings on invested proceeds of the debt. The 
capitalization period (^gins with the date of borrowing and ends when the asset is put into service. 

Debt and Amortization 

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of 
the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable arc reported net of the applicable 
bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are included in other non-current assets. 

Unearned Income 

Operating revenues include rental income derived from leasing Port-owned properties. Amounts 
due from certain lease agreements are billed in advance and recognition of the related revenue is 
deferred and recognized over the appropriate lease term. 

Compensated Absences 

Employees accumulate vacation and sick leave at var>'ing rates according to years of service. Upon 
termination, unused vacation not to exceed 300 hours is paid to the employee at the employee's 
current rate of pay. At retirement, unused vacation in excess of 300 hours and unused sick leave is 
considered in computing the years of service for retirement benefit purposes. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO HNANCIAL STATEMENTS 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
(continued) 

Statement of Cash Flows 

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits 
v^th banks, overnight repurchase agreements, and money market mutual funds. 

Deferred Inflows and Ontflows 

Effective July 1, 2012, the Port adopted GASB No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, Deferred Irtflows of Resources, and Net Position^ which establishes guidance for 
reporting deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a 
statement of financial position. 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

The Port's cash and investments consist primarily of deposits with financial institutions and 
investments in direct obligations of the United States Treasury or agencies thereof. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government's deposits may 
not be retumed to it Under state law, all deposits are secured by federal depository insurance or the 
pledge of securities held by the pledging banks agent in the Port's name. At June 30, 2013 and 
2012, the carrying amount of the Port's deposits (demand deposits and certificates of deposit) were 
$53,507,179 and $27,131,631 and the related bank balances were $54,234,505 and 528,318,671, 
respectively. Of the bank balances, $762,103 and $750,005 were covered by federal depository 
insurance and $53,472,403 and $27,568,666 were covered by collateral held by the pledging banks* 
trust department or agent in the Port's name at June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Investments 

The Port may invest idle funds as authorized by Louisiana Statutes and the Port's investment policy 
as follows: 

(a) United States bonds, treasuiy notes, certificates, or any other federally insured investment. 

(b) Time certificates of deposit of state banks organized under the laws of Louisiana and national 
banks having their principal office in the State of Louisiana. 

(c) Debt instruments issued by the state of Louisiana or any of its political subdivisions with a 
rating of at least BBB- or higher by Standard and Poor and the final maturity can be no more 
than three years. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISLVNA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

(d) Bonds, debentures, notes or other indebtedness issued by a state of the United States of 
America other than Louisiana or any such state's political subdivisions with a minimum rating 
A- or higher by Standard and Poor and the final maturity can be no more than three years. 

(e) Top Tier AI/PI rated Commercial Paper 

(f) Security Repurchase Agreements 

(g) Mutual or trust funds, which are registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission 
under the Securities Act of 1933 and the Investment Act of 1940 and which have underlying 
investments consisting solely of and limited to securities of the United States govemment or 
its agencies. 

The Port invests monies with the Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP). LAMP is a nonprofit 
corporation organized under the laws of the State of Louisiana formed by an mitiattve of the State 
Treasurer in 1993. While LAMP is not required to be a registered mvestment company under the 
bivestment Company Act of 1940, its investments policies are similar to those established by 
Rule 2-a7, which governs registered money market iiinds. The primary objective of LAMP is to 
provide a safe environment for the placement of public funds in short-tenn, high quality 
investments. LAMP^s portfolio includes only securities and other obligations in which local 
governments in Louisiana are authorized to invest. Accordingly, LAMP investments are restricted to 
securities issued, guaranteed, or backed by the U.S. Treasuiy, the U.S. govemment or one of its 
agencies, enterprises, or instmmentalities, as well as repurchase agreements collateralized by those 
securities. The dollar weighted average of portfolio maturity of LAMP assets is restricted to not 
more than 90 days and consists of no securities with a maturity in excess of 397 days. The fair 
market value of investments is determined weekly to monitor any variances between amortized cost 
and market value. For purposes of determining participants* share, investments are valued at 
amortized cost. LAMP is designed to be highly liquid to provide immediate access to participants. 

Cash and investments were included in the Statements of Net Position as of June 30 as follows: 

2013 2012 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 52,549,250 $ 26,186,485 
Investments - current assets 21,908,484 21,988,557 
Restricted assets 27.361.632 42,920,229 

$ 10K819J66 $ 91,095,271 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 

P40TES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Investments (continued) 

Included in cash and investments at June 30, were the follovving: 

2013 
U.S. Treasury 
U.S. Govemment Agency obligations 
Money market mutual funds 
LAMP 
Deposits: 

Brokerage Cash Account 
Certificates of deposit 
Demand deposit with banks 

Total cash and investments 

Interest Rate Risk 

$ 6,602.157 
33,900,383 
5,757,144 
2,010,001 

431 
1,000,000 

52,549,250 
$ 101,819,366 

2012 
6,871.029 

35,365,948 
4,338,986 
2,007,960 

15,324,863 
1,000,000 

26,186,485 
91,095,271 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market Interest rates will adversely affect the fair value 
of an mvestment. In general, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater tlie sensitivi^ of 
its fair value to changes in market interest rates. The Port has a formal investment policy that 
targets investment maturities equal to or less than three years as a means of managing its exposure 
to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. In addition, approximately 40% of the 
Port's portfolio shall be one >'ear or less for liquidity reasons and interest rate volatility risk. 

As of June 30,2013, the Port had the following investments and maturities. 

Remainmg Maturity (in Years) 

U.S. Treasury Notes 
Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Govemment Agencies 
Total 

Fair Value 
$ 6,602,157 

1,000,000 
33,900,383 

$ 41,502,540 

Less Tlian One 
$ 6,602,157 

1,000,000 
11,292,356 

$ 18,894,513 

$ 

S 

1-5 

22,608.027 
22,608,027 

As of June 30,2012, the Port had the following investments and maturities. 

Fair Value 
Remaining Maturity (in Years) 

Less Than One 
U.S. Treasury Notes 
Certificates of Deposit 
U.S. Govemment Agencies 
Total 

6,871,029 
1.000,000 

35,365,948 

S 6,871,029 
1,000,000 

21,486,254 
S 43,236,977 $ 29,357,283 

$ 

$ 

1-5 

13,879,694 
13,879,694 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISUNA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Credit Risk 

State law limits investments to instmments as described under "Divestments" for the purpose of 
safety of principal. The Port's investment policy does not further limit its investment choices. 
LAMP has been rated AAA by Standard & Poor's Corporation. The Federal National Mortgage 
Association, Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Home Loan Bank Consolidated 
Bonds and the Federal Farm Credit Banks are all rated AA-t- by Standard & Poor's Corporation. 
The money market mutual funds and the Brokerage Cash Account are unrated accounts. 

3, DUE FROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS 

Due from other governments consists of 1) state funds from the Louisiana Department of 
Transportation and Development for facility planning and control projects, fiood control projects 
and port priority projects and 2) federal funds receivable from the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA). At June 30,2013 and 2012, amounts due are as follows: 

2013 2012 
Louisiana Department of Transportation and 
Development S 2,923,295 $ 8,365,146 
U.S. Department of Homeland Security 702,583 13,417,220 

Total S 3,625,878 $ 21,782,366 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS O F THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

NOTES T O FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4. PROPERTY, NET 

A summary of changes in property is as follows: 

Property not being depreciated: 
L.and and improvements 
Consuudion in progress 

Total properly not being depreciated 

Property being depreciated: 
Propet^ (wharves, buildings^ etc.) 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Equipment 

Total property being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Property (wharves, buildbgSp etc.) 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total property being depreciated, net 
Property, net 

Jaly 1, 2012 

$ 72.751,872 $ 

70^20.972 

143.072,844 

793.651,321 

12,261,086 
24.223.587 

830.137,994 

t34S.099.6S9) 

(8J11.607) 

(8.719.303) 

(361.930.599) 

468,207.395 

S 611,280,239 $ 

Additions 

- $ 

38.509,897 

38.509.897 

39,675,944 

U91,405 

401.152 

41.468,501 

(21.830.028) 

(1,052.286) 

(1,107.064) 

(24.009.378) 

17.459.123 

55.969,020 $ 

Deletions 

(03,393) $ 

(54,529,158) 

(54.592,551) 

(149,886) 

(74.614) 

(1,067,170) 

(1,291,670) _ 

10,706 
74,614 

561.711 

647.031 

(644,639) 

(55,237.190) $ 

Jane 30,2013 

72,688.479 

54.301.711 

126,990,190 

833.177,379 

13.577.877 

23.559,569 

870J 14.825 

(366,939.011) 

(9,089,279) 

(9,264.656) 

(385,292.946) 

485.021.879 

612,012.069 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO PINANCL\L STATEMENTS 

4. PROPERTY. NET (continued) 

A summary of changes in property is as follows: 

Properly not being deprecialed: 
Land and improvements 
Construction in progress 

Total propert>' not being depreciated 

Property being depreciated: 
Property (wharves, buildings, etc.) 
Furniture and fixtures 
Equipment 

Total property being depreciated 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Property (wharves, buildings* etc.) 
Fumiture and fixtures 
Equipment 

Total accumulated depreciation 

Total property being depreciated, net 
Property, net 

J u l y l , 2011 

72.771,517 $ 

86.036.292 

158.807.809 

723.810.437 

8.783.411 

23.701.768 

756,295.616 

(325.967,402) 

(7.367.946) 

(9.694.661) 

(343.030.009) 

413.265.607 

572,073,416 $ 

Additions 

- S 
25.57U79 

25.571.379 

69,840.884 

3,690.196 

2,521,135 

76,052.215 

(19,132,287) 

(955.938) 

(921,161) 

(21.009386) 

55.042.829 

80,614,208 $ 

Deletions 

(19,645) $ 

(4U86.699) 

(41.306,344) 

* 

(212,521) 

(1,997.316) 

(2,209,837) 

212,277 

1.896.519 

2.108.796 

(101.041) 

(41,407,385) $ 

June 30.2012 

72,751.872 

70,320.972 

143.072,844 

793,65021 

12,261,086 

24.225.587 

830.137.994 

(345.099,689) 

(8.111.607) 

(8,719.303) 

(361,930.599) 

468^07.395 

611,280,239 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

4. PROPERTY. NET (continued) 

Construction in progress consists of the following atJune 30,2013 and 2012; 

2013 2012 
Hurricane Katrina Damages 
Wharf, Shed, & Yard Rehabs 
Reimbursable Dam^es 
Hurricane Isaac Storm Damages 
Roadways 
Industrial Properties 
Alabo Street Terminal Improvements 
Fencing 
Security 
Drainage 
Dredge 
Cranes 
Cruise Terminal Improvements 
Bridges 
Utilities 
Cold Storage 
Other 

Total 

$ 11,279,620 : 
18,424,965 
4,401.879 

803,210 
8,608 

242,235 
1,409 
1,262 

2,974,360 
20,156 

-
193.305 

13,481.638 
1,371,100 

652,969 
42,126 

402.869 
$ 54,301,711 

S 12^252,842 
11.734,023 
3,956,492 

21 
157331 
15331 

-
1,704 

U 10,750 
13,766 
21,636 

23,128,870 
14,101,480 

705,442 
617.074 

210 
23CM.000 

$ 70.320.972 

Total interest incurred by the Port was $5,448,274 and $5,520,713 for the years ended June 30, 
2013 and 2012, respectively. There were no earnings on invested proceeds of the debt during the 
years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. The difTerences between interest incun^ on 
debt for capital assets and interest earnings on invested proceeds of the debt totaled $5,448,274 and 
$5,520,713 for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. No amounts were included 
as part of the cost of capital assets under construction in progress for either of the years ended June 
30,2013 and 2012. 

As part of the Fortes long-term capital construction program, commitments related to such capital 
construction projects were approximately S96.9 million and $129.9 million as of June 30,2013 and 
2012. respectively. 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISmMA 

NOTES TO FINANCLVL STATEMENTS 

5. NON-CURREP4T LIABILmES 

Long-Term Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30,2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012 
Revenue bonds payable $ 105.780,000 S 122,255,000 
Premium and discounts 2,134356 (1,209,172) 
Deferred refunding loss (4.060,741) (724,350) 

103.853.615 120.321.478 
Less current portion (1.520.000) (325,000) 

Long-term debt noncurrent $ 102.333.615 $ 119,996,478 

On June 1,2001, the Port issued $30,800,000 Port Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001. The bonds 
mature in the year 2021. Proceeds from such bonds were expended for the acquisition; construction 
and completion of certain dock and wharf improvements for the development of the Napoleon 
Avenue Container Terminal. The bonds are limited obligations of the Port and arc payable solely 
from and secured by a pledge of the net revenues derived by the Port firom the entire port and harbor 
system and certain f\mds and accounts created under the bond indenture. In addition, the Series 
2001 Bonds are secured by a Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. Interest on the bonds is payable 
semi-annually on April I and October I. Literest rates vary from 4.25 percent to 5.63 percent All 
bonds may be redeemed prior to their maturities in accordance with provisions of the bond 
Indenture. The redemption price of some of the bonds includes a premium of 1 percent. The Port 
Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 were refunded and replaced with Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 
on May 3,2011 (see below). 

On August I. 2002. the Port issued $31,000,000 Port Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2002. The 
bonds mature in the year 2032. Proceeds firom such bonds were expended for the acquisition; 
construction and completion of certain dock and wharf improvements for the development of the 
Napoleon Avenue Container Terminal. The bonds are limited obligations of the Port and are 
payable solely from and secured by a pledge of the net revenues derived by the Port from the entire 
port and harbor system and certain funds and accounts created under the bond Indenture. In 
addition, the Series 2002 Bonds are secured by a Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. Interest on 
the bonds is payable semi-annually on April I and October I. Interest rates vary from 3.00 percent 
to 4.50 percent. All bonds may be redeemed prior to their maturities in accordance with provisions 
of the bond indenture. The redemption price of some of the bonds includes a premium of 1 percent. 
These bonds were refunded with proceeds of the Series 2012 and the 2013A&B bonds, (see 
below). 

28 
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NOTES TO FINANCLiL STATEMENTS 

5. NON-CURRENT LIABILTTIES (continued) 

Long-Term Debt fcontinned) 

On July 15, 2003, the Port issued $34,000,000 of Port Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2003. The 
bonds mature in the year 2033. Proceeds from such t}onds are to be used to finance certain capital 
improvements to the Port Complex, mcluding but not limited to, the acquisition and construction of 
parking and cruise terminal facilities, and to reimburse the Board for certain capital expenditures 
previously made. The bonds are limited obligations of the Port and are payable solely from and 
secured 1^ a pledge of the net revenues derived by the Port from the entire port and harbor system 
and certain funds and accounts created under the bond indenture. 

In addition, the Series 2003 Bonds are secured by a Financial Guaranty Insurance Policy. Interest 
on the bonds is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October I. Interest rates vary from 3.00 
percent to 5.00 percent C êrtain of the boivds may be redeemed prior to \\\t\x maturities in 
accordance with provisions of the bond indenture. The redemption price of some of the bonds 
includes a premium of 1 percent. The Port Facility Revenue Bonds. Series 2003 was partially 
refunded in 2008 with Revenue Bonds, Series 2008; the Bonds were fully refunded in 2013 with 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2013A&B (see below). 

On April 21, 2005. the Port issued $19,355,000 of Port Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2005. The 
bonds mature in the year 2034. Proceeds from such bonds are to be used to finance capital 
improvements to the Port Complex, including but not limited to. a cruise terminal complex on the 
Erato Street wharf, related parking and operational facilities, and other port facilities within its 
jurisdiction. Interest on the bonds is payable quarteriy on March 1, June 1, September 1, and 
December 1. The Interest rate varies with the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 
(SIFMA) index. The rate as of June 30. 2013 was 0.06 percent. The bonds are supported through a 
letter of credit agreement. The 2005 Series Revenue Bonds are subordinate to the 2008,2003,2002 
and 2001 Series Revenue Bonds. The Port Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 were refunded and 
replaced widi Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 on September 1.2010 (see below). 

On May 29, 2008, the Port issued $13,640,000 of Port Facility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 
2008. The bonds mature in the year 2038. Proceeds were used to refund $8,110,000, $1340,000 
and $1,775,000 of the Revenue Bonds Series 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. The bonds are 
limited obligations of the Port and are payable solely from and secured by a pledge of the net 
revenues derived by the Port from the entire port and harbor system and certain fiinds and accounts 
created under the bond indenture. In addition, the Series 2008 Bonds are secured by a Financial 
Guaranty Insurance Policy. Interest on the bonds is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 
I. The interest rate is fixed at 5.13 percent. Certain of the bonds may be redeemed prior to their 
maturities in accordance with provisions of the bond indenture at par. The net proceeds from this 
issue were deposited in an irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide debt service payments 
on the refunded portions of Revenue Bonds Series 2001, 2002 and 2003 thru April 1, 2014. The 
advance refunding met the requirements of an in-substance defeasance and the refunded bonds were 
removed from the Fortes fmancial statements. Tlie reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

5. NON-CURRENT LIABILTTIES (continued) 

Long-Term Debt (continued) 

amount on the bonds refunded resulting in a loss on refunding of $844,578, which is being 
amortized over the life of tlie new issue using the effective intercst method. This advance refunding 
was undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over 6 years by $9,166,309 and resulted in an 
economic loss of $1,257,288. At June 30, 2013, remaining principal on this defeased debt was 
£1.465.000. 

On September 1, 2010 the Port issued $18,090,000 of Subordinate Lien Variable Rate Revenue 
Bonds, Series 2010. The purpose of the issue was to provide funds to refund the Board's 
Subordinate Lien Variable Rate Revenue Bonds. Series 2005. outstanding in the amount of 
$18,095,000. The interest rate on the Series 2010 bonds varies with the Securities Industry and 
Financial Markets Association (SIFMA) index. The rate as of June 30. 2013 was 0.06 percent. 
These bonds are supported with a credit enhancement letter of credit by First NBC and a support 
letter of credit with the Federal Home Loan Bank of Dallas, bving, Texas. Affirmative and 
negative covenants are outiined on pages twenty-two through twenty-six of the Reimbursement 
agreement between the Port and First NBC. The bond issue is subordinate to the 2013A&B, 2012, 
20 M and 2008 Series Revenue Bonds. The Board advanced refunded the bonds to reduce the total 
gross debt service payments through April 1,2021 by $618,190 and to obtain an economic gain of 
$511,031. 

On May 3. 2011 the Port issued $15,585,000 of Board of Commissioners of tiie Port of New 
Orleans Port Facility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2011. The purpose of the issue was to 
provide sufficient funds to refund all of the Port's outstanding Port Facility Revenue Bonds. Series 
2001 in the outstanding amount of $15,290,000. The Series 2011 bonds were purchased by Regions 
Bank through the placement agent, Morgan Kcegan & Company, Inc. The interest rate is fixed at 
4.22 percent Covenants witii Regions bank are contained in tiie commitment letter dated March 13, 
2011. The refunding was entered into for the reason of future interest savings. The Board advanced 
refunded the bonds to reduce total gross debt service payments tiirough June 30.2021 by $759,904 
and to obtain an economic gain of $648,821. 

On June 27, 2012 the Port issued $15,495,000 of Board of Commissioners of the Port of New 
Orleans Port Facility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2012. The purpose of tiie issue was to 
provide sufficient funds for a partial refund of the Port's outstanding Port Facility Revenue Bonds, 
Serves 2002 in tiie outstanding amount of $14,980,000; tiie outstanding balance of the 2002 bonds 
was refunded on July 6,2012. The Series 2012 bonds were purchased by Regions Bank through the 
placement agent. Morgan Keeg^n & Company, Inc. The interest rate is fixed at 3.53 percent. 
Covenants with Regions bank are contained in the commitment letter dated May 31. 2012. The 
refunding was entered into for the reason of future interest savings, llie Board advanced refunded 
the bonds to reduce total gross debt service payments tiirough June 30.2027 by $1,785,929 and to 
obtain an economic gain of $1,631307. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

NON-CURRENT LIABILFfreS (continued) 

Long-Term Debt (continued) 

On January I. 2013 tiie Port issued $19,115,000 of Board of Commissioners of tiie Port of New 
Orleans Port Facility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013 A. The purpose of the issue was to 
provide sufficient funds to refund $2,475,000 of the Port's Facility Revenue Bonds. Series 2002 and 
$15,845,000 of Port's Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2003. The refunding left an outstanding 
amount of $11,190,000 in the Series 2002 and $15,270,000 in Series 2003. The Series 20I3A 
bonds were purchased by IBERIABANK through the placement agent, Raymond James & 
Associates. The interest rate is fixed at 3.25%. Covenants with IBERIABANK are contained in the 
commitment letter dated December 10, 2012. The refunding was entered into for the reason of 
future imerest savings. The Board advanced refunded the bonds to reduce total gross debt service 
payments tiirough June 30,2028 by $2,975,244 and to obtain an economic g în of $2,317,088. 

On February 21.2013 tiie Port issued $24,895,000 of Board of Commissioners of tiie Port of New 
Orleans Port Facility Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2013B. The purpose of tiie issue was to 
provide sufficient funds to refund of the remaining Port's Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 2002 and 
Series 2003. The refunding was accomplished through a public offering. The interest rate is at an 
average of 4.25% with a maturity of April 1,2033. The refunding was entered into for the reason of 
future interest savings. The Board advanced refunded the bonds to reduce total gross debt service 
payments through June 30.2033 by $3,597309 and to obtain an economic gain of $2,117,638. 

Operating revenues are pledged as security for all revenue bond issues. 

Debt service requirements relating to bonds outstanding are as follows: 

Years Ending 
June 30 

2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019-2023 
2024-2028 
2029-2033 
2034-2038 

Principal 
$ 1,520.000 S 

2,645,000 
2,760,000 
3.225,000 
3,450,000 

19,505,000 
23.505.000 
28.195.000 
20,975,000 

$ 105,780,000 S 

Interest 
; 3.799.877 $ 

3,790,530 
3.736,151 
3.642.062 
3,531,014 

15,694.447 
11,988,648 
7,453.485 
2.737,974 

; 56374,188 $ 

Total 
5319,877 
6,435,530 
6,496,151 
6,867,062 
6,981,014 

35.199,447 
35,493,648 
35.648,485 
23,712,974 

162,154,188 
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5. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continncd) 

Long-Term Debt fcontinued) 

Debt Service Assistance Program Loan Pavable 

In July 2006, the Port and the State of Louisiana (die State) entered into a Cooperative Endeavor 
Agreement whereby the State agreed to lend up to $14365,679 from State funds on deposit in the 
Debt Servk^c Assistance Fund, authorized by the Gulf Opportunity Zone Act of 2005 and Act 41 of 
the First Extraordinary Session of the Louisiana Legislature of 2006, to assist in payment of debt 
service requirements from 2006 through 2008 due to disruption of revenue streams caused by 
Hurricanes Katrina and Rita. Loan payments in the amount of $14,365,679 were made on behalfof 
the Port by the State as debt service became due. No principal or interest was payable during tiie 
initial five year period of the loan. After the expiration of the initial five year period, the loan bears 
interest at a fixed rate of 4.64 percent. Principal payments on the bonds begin in July 2012 and the 
loan will mature in July 2026. Interest is payable semi-annually on January 15 and July 15 which 
began in January 2012. 

The loan may be prepaid without penalty or premium. The Port had the right to request one 
extension of its obligation to begin payments under the loan not to exceed five years. In October of 
2011, the Port requested the extension from the State. The request was denied and the Port began 
interest payments on the debt in January of 2012. 

Debt service requirements relating to the bonds and debt service assistance loan payable are as 
follows: 

Years Ending June 30 Principal Interest TomI 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

2019-2023 
2024-2027 

Caoitol Lease 

$ 

$ 

715.683 
748,928 
783,678 
820.041 
858.090 

4.925,942 
4,829.370 

13,681.732 

S 

$ 

650.699 $ 
618.226 
584,246 
548,690 
511.484 

1,936,018 
709,911 

5,559,274 S 

1,366382 
1,367,154 
1367,924 
1.368.731 
1369.574 
6,861.960 
5,539.281 

19,241,006 

Capital lease obligations consist of the following at June 30,2013 and 2012: 

2013 2012 
Capital leases payable $ 2,570.888 $ 3,653,190 
Less current portion (984,276) (969,820) 

Long-term portion $ 1386,612 $ 2,683370 
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5. NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

Capital Lease (continued) 

Lease payments relating to capital leases outstanding are as follows: 

Years Ending June 30 Principal Interest Total 
2014 $ 984,276 149,253 1.161.728 
2015 966,439 94,784 1,061324 
2016 620,173 41388 1.026,052 

$ 2,570,888 J , 285,425 $ 3,249,004 

On November 17. 2000. the Port entered into a capital lease agreement to purchase two new 
container cranes at an aggregate cost of $12300,000 at 5.75 percent interest. The cranes were 
placed in service during tiie year ended June 30. 2004. At June 30. 2013 and 2012, the gross 
capitalized cost including capitalized interest was $11,857,545 with accumulated amortization of 
$2,838,421 and $2,537,783, respectively. There are tiiirty equal semi-annual payments of $628,454 
for principal and interest with the first payment due July I. 2001. The remaining proceeds of the 
capital lease were applied to the outstanding principal l^lance of the capital lease during October. 
2004. This reduced the remaining semi-annual payments to $464,075 for principal and interest with 
the first payment due January 1,2005. 

During the year ended June 30, 2010, the Port entered into four capital lease agreements for 
computer equipment at an aggregate cost of $408,467 at intercst retes ranging from 4.07 percent to 
7.59 percent. The montiily lease payments range from $1351 lo $3,417. CSI 6 is for tiiirty-six 
month period ending April 1,2012. CSI 8 is for forty-eight montii period ending June 1,2013. CSI 
10 is for tiie forty-eight montii period endmg February 1,2014. CSI 11 is for the sixty month period 
ending February 1,2015. 

During tiie year ended June 30, 2011, the Port entered into capital lease agreements for an Allfax 
copier at an aggregate cost of $24,250 at interest rate of 4.5%. The monthly lease payments are 
$450 for sixty month period ending December 17,2015. 

During the year ended June 30, 2012, the Port entered into capital lease agreements for CSI and 
IBM computers at an aggregate cost of $1308,804 at interest rates ranging from 3 - 4.11%. The 
monthly lease payments for the IBM computers are $8,215 for a thirty six month period ending 
August I, 2014. The monthly lease payments for the CSI computers arc $7,934 for a sixty montii 
period ending September 1,2016. 
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NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES (continued) 

Changes in Non-Current Liabilities 

Non-current liabilities activity for the years ended June 30.2012 and 2011 are as follows: 

Bonds pa>able: 

Revenue bonds 

Bond premium and 
discounts 
Refunding loss 

Total bonds payable 

Debt service assistance 
program 
Capital leases payable 

HPD pension liability 

Net post employment benefit 
obligation 
Compensated absences 

Jaly 1,2012 

$ 122.255.000 

(724,350) 
(1.209.172) 

120,321.478 

14,365.714 

3.653.190 

2.658.112 

1.889,518 

1.807,613 

$ 144.695.625 

$ 

$ ' 

Additions 

44,010.000 S 

2,537,197 
(2.989,999) 

43,557,198 

• 
-

981.687 

277397 
> 

44.816,282 $ 

Reductions 

(60,485,000) $ 

321,509 
138.430 

(60,025,061) 

<683.982) 

(1.082J02) 
-

-
(106.995) 

(61,898,340) $ 

June 30, 
2013 

105.780,000 $ 

2,134.356 
(4.060,741) 

103,853,615 

13,681,732 

2,570,888 

3.639,799 

2,166.915 

1.700,618 

127.613,567 $ 

Duo wittiin 
omyear 

l,5K).000 

-
-

1.520.000 

715,683 

984,276 
• 

-
105,000 

3,324,959 

Bonds payable: 
Revenue bonds ; 

Bond premium and 
discounts 
Refunding loss 

Total bonds payable 

[Debt service assistance 
program 
Capital leases payable 

HPD pension liability 
Net post employment 
benefit obligation 
Compensated absences 

July 1,2011 

S 106,760,000 

(754,407) 

(1.299.889) 

I04.705»704 

14.365,679 

3,870,786 
1,773,694 

1,579,370 

1.488,199 

$ 127,783,432 

$ 

$ , 

Additions 

15.495,000 S 

-
. 

15,495.000 

35 
738,267 

884,418 

310.148 

404.186 

17.832,054 $ 

Reductions 

- $ 

30,057 
90.717 

120,774 

-
(955,863) 

. 

» 
(84,772) 

(919,861) S 

June 30.2012 

122.255.000 $ 

(724,350) 
(1^09.172) 

120,321,478 

14,365.714 

3.653,190 

2.658,112 

1,889,518 

t.807,613 

144.695.625 $ 

Dae witbin 
one year 

325,000 

* 
. 

325.000 

683,947 

969.820 
. 

• 

105,000 

2,083,767 
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NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS 

6. RISK MANAGEMENT. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 

The Port is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Port carries commercial liability 
and property insurance. The Port is self-insured for ^vorkers* compensation and general maritime 
claims ("Jones Act'*), The Port continues to be liable for each such claim up to $1,000,000, with 
judgments and settlements over the $1,000,000 limit being covered by the Port's umbrella liability 
policy up to $30,000,000 for each occurrence. For the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, the 
Port's expenses for workers* compensation and other liability claims were $390,702 and $336,036, 
respectively. There were no expenses related to police professional liability incurred during 2013 
and 2012. For each of the past three years, there were no settlements that exceeded the Port^s 
insurance coverage. 

As of June 30, 2013, the Port has determined, through an analysis of historical experience, the 
adequacy of the liability recorded to cover all losses and claims, both incurred and reported and 
incurred but not reported, under its self-insurance programs. These amounts are not discounted. 

A summary of activity in the liability for claims, which are included in other liabilities, is as 
follows: 

2013 2012 2011 
Balance, beginning of year $ 1,184.404 $ 1,124,592 $ 1^44,248 
Provision for claims - 336,036 275,416 
Benefit payments, net of 
recoveries (106,290) (276.224) (495,072) 
Balance, end of year $ 1,078,114 $ 1,184,404 $ 1,124,592 

The Port is a party to various legal proceedings incidental to its business. There are several lawsuits 
pending in which the Board is named as a defendant by longshoremen claiming asbestosis-related 
injuries because the Board at one time had asbestos materials cross its wharves. Certain other 
claims, suits and complaints arising ui the ordinary course of business have been filed or are 
pending against the Port. The resolution of these matters is not expected to have a material adverse 
effect on tlie financial statements of the Port. 

The Port is also a party to various legal proceedings related to Hurricane Katrina. Six cases remain 
based on alleged Board liability arising from the flooding that occurred after Katrina. Five have 
been inactive for several years and are in effect all but abandoned. The Board has been dismissed 
from one other case that is proceeding without it, but the plaintiffs right to appeal the dismissal will 
remain until the entire case is litigated. Outside counsel appomted by the Board's general liability 
underwriters continue to monitor all cases. No amounts have been provided relating to these legal 
proceedings. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT, CONTINGENCIES AND COMMTTMENTS (continued^ 

The Port receives financial assistance directly from Federal agencies which are subject to audit and 
final acceptance by these agencies. In the opinion of management, amounts that might be subject to 
disallowance upon final audit, if any, would not have a material effect on the Port's financial 
position. 

REVENUES AND LEASES 

Revenues of the Port are reported net of estimated uncollectible amounts. Total estimated 
uncollectible amounts related to accounts receivable were $626,308 and $965,622 at June 30,2013 
and 2012, respectively. 

The Port leases to others substantially all of its land, proper^ and equipment under various 
operating lease agreements. For the year ended June 30, 2013, two lessees accounted for 20% and 
16% of operating revenues, respectively. For the year ended June 30, 2012, two lessees accounted 
for 20% and 17% of operating revenues, respectively. Operating lease rental income was 
$25,416,981 and $22,505,298 during the years ended June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 

As of June 30, 2013, future minimum rental payments to be received under operating leases that 
have initial or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are as follows: 

2014 $ 20,679,935 
2015 16,173,163 
2016 15,866,308 
2017 15,511,909 
2018 15,118,383 

Thereafter 42,422,318 
Total fiiture minimum lease payments $ 125,772,016 
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RETIREMENT PLANS 

Substantially all of the Port's employees ore required by State law to participate in retirement plans 
administered by the Louisiana State Employees* Retirement System ('̂ LASERS") or the Harbor 
Police Employees' Retirement System ("HPERS"). LASERS and HPERS are both single employer 
defined benefit plans. 

Disclosures relating to these plans are as follows: 

A. LOUISIANA STATE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

The plan provides for a retirement option designated as the Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
(DROP). This option permits LASERS members to continue working at their state jobs for up 
to three years while in a retired status. DROP aWovfS these retirees to accumulate retirement 
benefits in a special account for later distribution. 

Ftmding policy - The LASERS is a defined benefit contributory pension plan to which 
employees contributed 7.5% of their salaries if hired prior to July 1, 2006 and 8.0% if hired 
after July 1,2006. For the years ended June 30,2013 and 2012, the Port contributed 29.1 % and 
25.6% of the employees* salaries toward future benefits respectively. Provisions for employer 
and employee contributions are in LRS 42:651; 712; 712.1; 7123. 

Ten-year historical trend information showing the LASERS's progress in accumulating 
sufficient assets to pay benefits when due is presented in the LASERS's June 30,2011 audited 
financial reports. The LASERS issues a publicly available fmancial report that includes 
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by 
writing to the Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System, Post Office Box 44213, Baton 
Rouge, LA 70804-4213. 

Total contributions for the years ended June 30, 2013, 2012 and 2011 were $4,206,513, 
$3,431,724 and $2,977,989. respectively. These amounts are equal to the required 
contributions for each of these three years. Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2013 
consisted of employee contributions of $870,151 and employer contributions of $3,336,362. 
Contributions for the year ended June 30, 2012 consisted of employee contributions of 
$785,411 and employer contributions of $2,646,314. 

B. HARBOR POUCE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Plan Description - All commissioned members and certain employees of the Harbor Police 
Department of the Port who are under the age of 50 on the date of employment are eligible to 
participate in the HPERS, established within Title 11 Chapter 3 of the Louisiana Revised 
Statutes, a single employer defined benefit pension plan administered by an eight member 
Board of Trustees. 
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

B. HARBOR POLICE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

The Port's total payroll for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 was $16,981,202 and 
$16,318,234, respectively, of which $1,614,737 and $1,618,944, in covered payroll, 
respectively, related to participants in the HPERS. 

Member benefits are equal to 3 1/3% of average final compensation, as defined, multiplied by 
creditable service years, not to exceed 100% of final salary. However, if a person retires 
before age 50, the benefit is 2 1/2% of average final compensation, as defined, muhiplied by 
creditable service years, not to exceed 85% of final salary. Members are eligible to retire if 
hired before July 1,2006 at any age with 30 years of service, at age 60 with 10 years of service 
and at agp 45 with 20 years of service. If members are hired after July 1,2006, members are 
eligible to retire at age 60 with 5 years of service or more. The HPERS also provides benefits 
for surviving spouses and disabled members. If a member resigns from the Police Department 
before retirement, accumulated employee contributions are refunded to tlie employee without 
interest. Cost-of-living adjustments are provided to members and beneficiaries at the 
discretion of the Board of Trustees subject to certain constraints. 

The plan provides for a retirement option designated as the Deferred Retirement Option Plan 
(DROP). This option permits HPERS members to continue working at their jobs for up to five 
years while in a retired status. DROP allows these retirees to accumulate retirement benefits 
in a special account for later distribution. 

The HPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. That report may be obtained by writing to the Harbor 
Police Retirement System, Post OfHce Box 60046, New Orleans, LA 70160. 

Funding Policy - Employees are requued to contribute 9.0% of their covered payroll to the 
HPERS. The Port is required to make contributions to Ihe HPERS at actuarially determined 
rates expressed as a percentage of members' covered payroll, not to exceed 20.0%. Level 
percentage of payroll employer contribution rates are determined using the entiy age normal 
actuarial method until assets exceed accrued actuarial liabilities, at which point the aggregate 
actuarial cost method is used. The Port funded (including fines) 12.91% and 12.99% of the 
members' covered payixill for fiscal years ended June 30,2013 and 2012, respectively. 
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS (continued) 

B. HARBOR POLICE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued) 

The Port's annual pension cost and net 

2013 2012 

$ 

_L-

1,484,354 
186,068 

(344,952) 
1,325,470 
(343,783) 
981,687 

2.658,112 
3,639,799 

$ 

$ 

1,340,003 
124,159 
(234.418) 
1,229,744 
(345,326) 
884,418 

1,773.694 
2,658,112 

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation 
pension obligation to HPERS are as follows: 

Annual required contribution 
Interest on net pension obligation 
Adjustment to annual required contribution 
Annual pension cost 
Contributions made 
Increase in net pension obligation 
Net pension obligation, beginning of year 
Net pension obligation, end of year 

The annual required contributions for 2013 and 2012 were determined based on actuarial 
valuations using the aggregate actuarial cost method. Because the method does not identity or 
separately amortize unfunded actuarial liabilities, information about the funded status is 
prepared using the entry age actuarial cost ntethod and is intended to serve as a surrogate for 
the funded status of the Plan. The actuarial assumptions included (a) the determination of life 
expectancy based on the 1971 Group Annuity Mortality Table, (b) the determination of 
participant retirements based on an expected retirement age of 63 years, (c) an assumed 
average rate of return on investment of 7.0%, and (d) projected salaiy increases of 5.0% per 
year (2.5% increase for inflation and 2.5% increase for seniority and merit raises). 

The assumptions did not include postretirement benefit increases. The actuarial value of 
assets was determined using techniques that smooth the effects of short-term volatility in the 
market value of investments over a four-year period. 

Three-Year Trend Information 

Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30 

2011 
2012 
2013 

Annual Pension 
Cost(APC) 

914,592 
1,229,744 
U25,470 

Percentage of APC 
Contributed 

25.0 $ 
28.0 $ 
26.0 $ 

Net Pension 
Obligation 
(Benefit) 

1,773,694 
2,658,112 
3,639,799 
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS rcontinued) 

B. HARBOR POLICE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continaed) 

As of June 30, 2013, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 57.65% funded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $17.4 million, and the actuarial value of assets 
was $10 million, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $7.3 million. 

The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $1.7 
million, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 230.0%. 

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) 
following the notes to the financial statements, presents current year information about 
whether the actuarial values of plan assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to 
tlie actuarial accrued liability for benefits. Multiyear trend information will be presented in 
fiiture years. 

The following is a summary of Ihe statement of plan net assets available for benefits as of June 
30,2013 and 2012 and changes in net assets for the years then ended: 

Statement of Plan Net Assets 
Investments at fair value 
Cash equivalents - LAMP 
Ck)ntributions receivable 
Liabilities 
Net assets available for benefits 

2013 2012 

s 

$ 

10,224,558 
302,540 
66,610 

(21,805) 
10,571,903 

$ 

S 

9,262,969 
476,505 
51,086 

(17.713) 
9,772,847 
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8. RETIREMENT PLANS (continued^ 

B. HARBOR POLICE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM (coatinucd) 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 2013 

Increase (decrease) in plan net assets 

Net assets available for benefits: 
Beginning of year 
End of year 

799,056 

9,772,847 

2012 
Additions (Reductions): 

Contributions 
Investment income including 
Unrealized gains (losses) 
Total additions (reductions) 

Deductions: 
Benefits paid 
DROP Benefit payments 
Refunds and transfers of contributions 
Admmistrative expenses 

Total deductions 

$ 588,711 S 

K437.673 
2,026.384 

795.369 
283,794 

1,107 
147,058 

1.227,328 

; 496,142 

(545,302) 
(49,160) 

883,352 
158,896 

2.480 
143,809 

1,188,537 

(1.237,697) 

11,010,544 
10.571.903 9,772.847 

- 4 1 -



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 

NOTES TO FINANCUL STATEMENTS 

9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description - The Port of New Orleans' medical benefits are provided through a 
comprehensive medical plan and are made available to employees upon actual retirement. 

The employees are covered by a retirement system whose retirement eligibility (D.R.O.P. entry) 
provisions are as follows: 30 years of service at any age; age 55 and 25 years of service; or, age 60 
and 10 years of service. For employees hired on or after July 2,2006, the retirement eligibility is age 
60 and 10 years of service. 

There is a closed group of 57 retirees for whom the employer currently pays approximately 80% of 
the premium; there will not be any additions to this group in the future. We have calculated the ARC 
for this group and included the results in Appendix I. You will note that the ARC is less than the 
current annual premiums which are being paid by the employer, thus generating a negative net ARC 
after crediting the employer paid retiree premiums. All of the assumptions used for the valuation of 
the medical benefits have been used except for the trend assumption; zero trend was used for life 
insurance. 

Contribution Rates - Employees do not contribute to their post employment benefits costs until they 
become retirees and begin receiving those benefits. The plan provisions and contribution rates are 
contained in the official plan documents. 

Fund Policy - Until 2008, the Port of New Orleans recognized the cost of providing post-
employment medical and life insurance benefits (the Port of New Orleans' portion of the retiree 
medical and life insurance benefit premiums) as an expense when the benefit premiums vĥ ere due and 
thus financed the cost of the post-employment benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. In 2013 and 2012, 
the Port of New Orieans' portion of health care and life insurance funding cost for retired employees 
totaled $843,424 and $965,895, respectively. 

Effiective July 1, 2008, the Port of New Orleans implemented Govemment Accounting Standards 
Board Statement Number 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Post 
employment Benefits Other than Pensions (GASB 45). This amount was applied toward the Net 
OPEB Benefit Obligation as shown in the following table. 

Annual Required Contribution - The Port of New Orleans* Annual Required Contribution (ARC) is 
an amount actuarially determined in accordance with GASB 45. The ARC is the sum of the Normal 
Cost plus the contribution to amortize the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability (UAAL). A level 
dollar, open amortization period of 30 years (the maximum amortization period allowed by GASB 
43/45) has been used for the post-employment benefits. The actuarially computed ARC is as follows: 
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9, OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Normal Cost 
30-year UAL amortization amount 
Annual required contribution (ARC) 

2013 
294,341 
860,171 

1,154,512 

2012 

339,345 
964,859 

1,304,204 

Net Post-employment Benefit Obligation (Asset) - The table below shows Port of "New Orleans' Net 
Other Post-employment Benefit (OPEB) Obligation (Asset) for fiscal year ending June 30: 

2013 2012 
Beginning Net OPEB Obligation 
Annual required contribution 
Interest on Net OPEB Obligation 
ARC Adjustment 
OPEB Cost 
Contribution 
Current year retiree premium 
Change in Net OPEB Obligation 
Ending Net OPEB Obligation 

$ 1,889,518 3 
1,154,512 

75,581 
(109,271) 
1,120,822 

(843,425) 
277397 

$ 2,166.915 3 

; 1,579370 
1,304,204 

63,174 
(91,335) 

1.276,043 

(965,895) 
310,148 

; 1,889,518 

The following table shows the Port of New Orleans* annual post employment benefits (PEB) cost, 
percentage of the cost contributed, and the net unfunded post employment benefits (PEB) liability as 
June 30,2013 and 2012: 

Fiscal Year Ended 

"20T3 
2012 

Annual OPEB Cost 
$ 1,120,822 
$ 1,276,043 

Percentage of Annual 
Cost Contributed 

75.25% 
75.69% 

Net OPEB 
Liability 

$2,166,915 
$1,889,518 

Funded Status and Funding Progress - In the fiscal years ending June 30,2013 and 2012, the Port 
of New Orleans made no contributions to its post employment benefits plan. The plan is not 
funded, has no assets, and hence has a funded ratio of zero. Based on July 1, 2012 actuarial 
valuation, the most recent valuation, the Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL) at tlie end of the year 
June 30, 2013 was $14.874322, which is defined as that portion, as determined by a particular 
actuarial cost method (the Port of New Orleans uses the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method), of the 
actuarial present value of post employment plan benefits and expenses which is not provided by 
normal cost. 
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

2013 2012 
Actuarial Accrued Liabilit>'(AAL) $ 14,874,22 $ 16,684,601 
Actuarial Value of Plan Assets 
Unfunded Act. Accrued Liability (UAAL) $ 14,874,22 $ 16,684,601 
Funded Ratio (Act. Val. Assets/AAL) -

Covered Payroll (active plan members) $ 14340,698 $ 13,627.640 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 104.45% 122.43% 

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions • Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported 
amounts and assumptions about the probability of events far into the future. The actuarial valuation 
for post employment benefits includes estimates and assumptions regarding (1) turnover rate; (2) 
retirement rate; (3) health care cost trend rate; (4) mortality rate; (5) discount rate (investment return 
assumption); and (6) the period to which the costs apply (past, current, or future years of service by 
employees). Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as actual results are 
compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. 

The actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the Port of New Orleans and its employee plan members) 
at the time of the valuation and on the pattern of sharing costs between the Port of New Orleans and 
its plan members to that point The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not 
explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of 
cost sharing between the Port of New Orleans and plan members in the future. Consistent with the 
tong-term perspective of actuarial calculations, the actuarial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuorial 
value of assets. 

Actuarial Cost Method- The ARC is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method. The 
employer portion of the cost for retiree medical care in each future year is determined by projecting 
the current cost levels using the healthcare cost trend rate and discounting this projected amount to 
the valuation date using the other described pertinent actuarial assumptions, including the investment 
return assumption (discount rate), mortality, and turnover. 

Actuarial Value of Plan Assets - Since the OPEB obligation has not as yet been funded, there arc not 
any plan assets. It is anticipated that in future valuations, should funding take place, a smoothed 
maricet value consistent with Actuarial Standards Board Actuarial Standards of Practice Number 6 
(ASOP 6), as provided in paragraph number 125 of GASB Statement 45. 
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued) 

Turnover Rate - An age-related turnover scale based on actual experience as described by 
administrative staff has been used. The rates, when applied to the active employee census, produce 
an annual turnover of approximately 10.0%. 

Post employment Benefit Plan Eligibility Requirements - It has been assumed that entitlement to 
benefits will commence upon actual retirement which, in tum, has been assumed to be four years 
af̂ er the initial retirement (D.R.O.P. entry) eligibility described in the section above entitled "'Plan 
Description". This four years comprises three years in the D.R.O.P. plus one additional year. 
Medical benefits are provided to employees upon actual retirement 

Investment Return Asswnption (Discount Rate) - GASB Statement 45 states that the investment 
return assumption should be the estimated long-term investment yield on the investments that are 
expected to be used to finance the payment of benefits (that is, fbr a plan which is funded). Based on 
the assumption that the ARC will not be funded, a 4% annual investment return has been used in this 
valuation. 

Health Care Cost Tretid Rate - The expected rate of increase in medical cost is based on a graded 
schedule beginning with 8% annually, down to an ultimate annual rate of 5.0% for ten years out and 
later. 

Mortality Rate - The 1994 Group Annuity Reserving (94GAR) table, projected to 2002, based on a 
fixed blend of 50% of the unloaded male mortality rates and 50% of the unloaded female mortality 
rates, is used. This is a recently published mortality table which has been used in determining the 
value of accrued benefits in defmed benefit pension plans. Projected future mortality impix)vement 
has not been used since it is our opinion that this table contains sufficiently conservative margin for 
the population involved in this valuation. 
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9. OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEHTS fcontinued^ 

Method of Determining Value of Benefits - The "value of benefits" has been assumed to be the 
portion of the premium af̂ er retirement date expected to be paid by the employer for each retiree and 
has been used as the basis for calculating the actuarial present value of OPEB benefits to be paid. 
The employer pays 80% of the "base premium" (that is, not including the "buy up" additional 
portion) of the medical benefits for the retirees and dependents prior to Medicare eligibility at age 
65. The medical rates provided applicable before Medicare eligibility at age 65 are ''blended" rates 
for active and retired. Since GASB 45 mandates that "unblended** rates be used, we have estimated 
the "unblended" medical rates for retired before Medicare eligibility to be 130% of the btended rate. 
After Medicare eligibility, the employer pays 60% of the applicable premium for either the Hartford 
Senior Care Plan or the Humana HMO Medicare Advantage Plan. As of this valuation date, 
approximately 40% of the retirees over age 65 are in the Medicare Advantage Plan. It has been 
assumed that the same percentage will prevail in the future and that 40% of currently active 
employees and those currently retired who are before age 65 will elect the Medicare Advantage Plan. 
The Port of New Orleans has adopted a provision limiting the employer portion of the premium paid 
to 200% of the prevailing employer t>ortion of the premium paid under the 2008 premium scale. 

h^ation Rate - Included in both the Investment Return Assumption and the Healthcare Cost Trend 
retes above is an implicit inflation assumption of 2.50% annuall)'. 

Projected Salary Increases - This assumption is not applicable since neither the benefit structure nor 
the valuation methodology involves salary. 

Post-retirement Benefit Increases - The plan benefit provisions in effect for retirees as of the 
valuation date have been used and it has been assumed for valuation purposes that there will not be 
any changes in the future. 

Below is a summary of OPEB cost and contributions for the last three fiscal years: 

OPEB Costs and Contributions 

OPEB Cost : 

Contribution 
Retiree premium 

Total contribution and premium 

Change in net OPEB obligation I 

% of contribution to cost 
% of contribution plus premium to cost 

2013 

1,120,822 

843,424 
843,424 

277,398 

0.00% 
72.60% 

$ 

$ _ 

2012 

1,276,043 $ 

965,895 
965,895 

310,I4S $ 

0.00% 
75.69% 

2011 

1,231,900 

894,348 
894,348 

337,552 

0.00% 
75.25% 
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10. CONDUIT DEBT 

From time to time, the Port has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds to provide assistance for private-
sector entities for Port related projects that are deemed to be in the public interest. The Port is not 
obligated for repayment of the bonds. Accordingly, the bonds are not reported in the accompanying 
financial statements. 

Industrial revenue bonds in the amount of $35,600,000 were issued by the Port on July I. 1981, for 
the account of Avondalc Shipyards, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ogden Management 
Corporation) for tlie purpose of financing a floating dry dock and support facilities to be moored 
within the jurisdiction of the Port as part of the public port. Industrial revenue bonds in the amount 
of $36,250,000 were issued on June I, 1983, to provide funds for the purpose of refunding the 
bonds issued on July 1, 1981. Industrial revenue bonds in the amount of $36,250,000 were issued 
on April L, 1994, to provide funds for the purposeof refunding the bonds issued on June 1,1983, 
and will mature in 2014. The bonds are limited obligations of the Port, payable solely from and 
secured by a pledge of the revenues to be received pursuant to an bistallment Sales Agreement and 
by an unconditional guarantee by Ogden Management Corporation. Tlie aggregate amount 
outstanding at June 30,2013 is not readily determinable by the Port. 

Port facility revenue bonds in the amount of $3,700,000 were issued on June 8,2000 for the account 
of New Orieans Steamboat Company for the purpose of constructing a facility within the 
jurisdiction of the Port as part of the public port. At June 30, 2013, $3,500,000 is outstanding. The 
bonds are limited obligations of the Port, secured by a letter of credit issued by First Bank and Trust 
in New Orleans and a confirmmg letter of credit of the Federal Home Loan Bank in New Orleans 
for the account of New Orleans Steamboat Company. 

Port facility revenue bonds in the amount of $7,500,000 were issued on November 1, 2002 for the 
account of New Orleans Cold Storage and Warehouse Company Limited (KOCS) for the purpose of 
constructing a cold storage facility. On June 7,2012, NOCS restructured and reissued the bonds in 
a private placement with JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. Previous to this date, die bonds were 
secured by a letter of credit issued by the Whitney National Bank in New Orleans for the account of 
NOCS. This security was cancelled with the reissuance. At June 30, 2013, $7,125,000 remains 
outstanding. The bonds are limited obligations of the Port. 

In March 2005, the Port entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement with the Louisiana 
Department of Economic Development (DED) and CG Railway, Inc. to provide a portion of the 
financing for an approximately $43,500,000 rail car cargo facility. Under the agreement, the DED 
provided $15,000,000 of the project costs througli tlie issue of special project revenue bonds. 
Special Project Revenue Bonds in the amount of $16,670,000 were issued on May 24,2005 for this 
purpose. The bonds are limited obligations of the Port, payable solely from and secured by the State 
of Louisiana. The outstanding principal of these bonds was refunded in February of 2013, see 
below. 
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10. CONDUIT DEBT (continued^ 

The agreement was amended April 2006 as a result of the discontinuance of the dredging of siltation 
in and around the Mississippi River Gulf Outlet following Hurricane Katrina, which rendered many 
of the obligations under the agreement impossible and required that any items not needed by the 
Port for maritime commerce be sold and the proceeds tumed over to the State of Louisiana to help 
defray the costs of the project. In September 2006, the Port sold some of the items declared as 
surplus to the Port*s needs for maritime commerce to CO Railway, Inc. for $2,500,000. This 
amount was submitted to the DED. 

On February I, 2013 the State of Louisiana and the Port issued $3,310,000 of Board of 
Commissioners of the Port of New Orleans Port Facility Special Project Refunding Revenue Bonds 
(State/CG Railway, Inc. Project), Series 2013. The purpose of the issue was to provide sufficient 
funds to refund the remaining principal on the Series 2005 Board of (Commissioners of the Port of 
New Orieans Special Project Revenue Bonds (State/CG Railway, Inc. Project) issued on May 24, 
2005. The refunding was accomplished through a private placement with Capital One Public 
Funding, LLC. The interest rate is 1,40% with a maturity of August 15,2015. The refunding was 
entered into for the reason of future interest savings. The State advanced refunded the bonds to 
reduce total gross debt service payments through June 30, 2015 by $278,378 and to obtain an 
economic gain of $273,934. At June 30,2013, $3,310.000 is outstanding. 

IL NATURAL DISASTER 

On August 29, 2005, the New Orleans region suffered significant damage to property and lives 
when Hurricane Katrina struck the Gulf Coast area. The Port of New Orleans did not suffer the 
devastation that other public entities realized in the area, but did sustain damage to facilities and 
loss of revenue. The Port facilities along die river suffered moderate damage. Facilities along the 
Industrial Canal suffered severe damage. The Port had insurance in place to cover most of the 
property damage and business interruption insurance to offset some of the revenue loss. For losses 
above the faisurance receipts the Port is pursuing reimbursement through FEMA. 

On August 28, 2012, Hurricane Isaac made landfall on the Louisiana and Mississippi coast causing 
severe flooding and wind damage to coastal areas. The Port of New Orleans suffered minor 
damages from Isaac. Emergency preparation and repairs were approximately $814,000 of which 
FEMA reimbursed $338,000. Other damage to port property was approximately $2.0 million. The 
Port is pursuing additional claims with FEMA and with the insurer. As of the Hnanciaj statement 
date it is unknown whether these claims will be successful. 

12. SUBSEOUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through the date that the financial statements were 
available to be issued, September 18,2013, and determined no subsequent events require disclosure. 
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REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

HARBOR POLICE EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

06/30/2013 
06/30/2012 
06/30/2011 
06/30/2010 
06/30/2009 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

10.057,231 
11,108,029 
12,182,061 
12,824,215 
12,824,215 

Actuarial 
Accrued Liability 
(AAL) - Entry Age 

(b) 

17,445,466 
17,046,368 
16,461.720 
16,083,647 
16.083,647 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAl.) 

(b^) 

7388,235 
5,938339 
4,279,659 
3,259,432 
3,259,432 

Funded 
Ratio 
(aA)) 

57.65% 
65.16% 
74.00% 
79.73% 
79.73% 

Covered 
Payroll 

(0 

1,614,737 
1,618,944 
1,490,146 
1,678,247 
1,579.359 

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Covered Payroll 
((b-aVc) 

457.6% 
366.8% 
287.2% 
194.2% 
206.4% 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIO^fERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. IX)UISIANA 

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSION BENEFITS 

SrHKDULK OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

RETIREE HEALTH AND LIFE INSURANCE BENEFITS 

Actuarial 
Valuation 

Date 

06/30/2013 
06/30/2012 
06/30/2011 
06/30/2010 

Actuarial 
Value of 
Assets 

(a) 

-
m 

-

Actuarial 
Accrued Liability 
(AAL) - Entry Age 

(b) 

14.874.222 
16,684,601 
16,042,886 
18.349,641 

Unfunded 
AAL 

(UAAL) 

0>^) 

14,874,222 
16,684.601 
16.042,886 
18349.641 

Funded 
Ratio 
(aA>) 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

Covered 
Payroll 

(c) 

14,240,698 
13,627,640 
13.100,142 
13,127,850 

UAAL as a 
Percentage of 

Covered Payroll 
((b-a)/c) 

104.4% 
122.4% 
122.5% 
139.8% 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT 

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
GOVERNMENT A UDITING STANDARDS 

The Board of Commissioners of the 
Port of New Orleans: 

We have audited, in accordance with tiie auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the fmancial statements of the Board of 
Commissioners of the Port of New Orleans (the Port), as of and for the year June 30,2013, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 18, 2013. 

Intemal Control Over Finapcial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port's intemal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to detennine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of e:qpressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's internal control. Accordingly, we do 
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's intemal control. 

A deficiency in intemal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the nomial course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination 
of deficiencies, in intemal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
govemance. 

Our consideration of intemal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
fmancial reportmg that might be material weaknesses or significam deficiencies. Given these limitations, 
during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in intemal control that we consider to be material 
weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

- 1 -
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port's financial statements are firee fiom 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
detemiination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions v âs not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Govemment Auditing Standards. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the Port in a separate letter dated September 
18,2013. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of intemal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's intemal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Govemment Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intemal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 
24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
September 18,2013 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-

133 AND THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 

The Board of Commissioners of the 
Port of New Orleans: 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited the Port of New Orleans (the Port) compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the OMB Circular A-l 3S Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and 
material effect on each of the Porfs major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. The Porfs 
major federal programs are identified in the summaiy of auditor^ results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grants applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the Porfs major federal programs 
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of 
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the 
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Porfs compliance with 
those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Porfs compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Port complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material efifect on each of its major federal programs for the 
year ended June 30,2013. 
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Report on Intemal Control Over Compliance 

Management of the Port is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over 
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In plaiming and performing our 
audit of compliance, we considered the Port's intemal control over compliance with the types of 
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the 
auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on intemal control over compliance in 
accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Port's intemal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in intemal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over compliance, such that there is a 
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
intemal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
wealcness in mtemal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 
with govemance. 

Our consideration of mtemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in intemal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in intemal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on intemal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of intemal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of 
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the financial statements of the Port as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and have 
issued our report thereon dated September 16, 2013, which contained unqualified opinions on those 
financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on the financial 
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibihty of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the fmancial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the fmancial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the 
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of 
federal awards is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

P&N 



This report is intended solely for the infomiation of the Port, the Port's management and federal awarding 
agencies and pass-through entities, such as the Louisiana and Legislative Auditor's Office, and is not 
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. However under 
Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, this report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public 
document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
September 18,2013 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS, LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Federal Grantor/Program Title 

United States Department of Homeland Security -

Passed through the State of Louisiana Office of Homeland Security and 
Emergency Preparedness 

Disaster Grants - Public Assistance 

Passed through the OfHce of Stale and Local Govenmient Coordination 
and Preparedness 

Port Security Grant Program 
2006 Port Security Grant 

Total United States Department of Homeland Security 

Total Federal Assistance Expended 

Federal 
CFDA No. Expenditures (1) 

97.036 

97.056 

15,177,499 

1,154,434 

16,331,933 

$ 16,331,933 

FOOTNOTES 

( n Basis of Presentation 

This schedule includes the federal grant activity of the Port of New Orleans and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. 
The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements on OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States. 
Local Governments, and Non- Profit Organizations. 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS O F THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISIANA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

SECTION I-SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditor's report issued: 

Intemal control over financial reporting: 

Material weaknesses identified? 

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements notes? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Intemal control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identified? 

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered 
to be material weaknesses? 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133? 

Unqualified 

.Yes X No 

Yes X No 

Yes X No 

Yes X No 

Yes X None 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified 

Yes X No 

Identification of major programs: 

United States Department of Homeland Security, Office of State and Local Govemment -
Coordination and Preparedness - Port Security Grant (CFDA number 97.056) 

United States Department of Homeland Security, Office of Domestic Preparedness - Federal 
Emergency Management Agency - FEMA (CFDA number 97.036) 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between types A and B programs: $489.958 

Audit qualified as low-risk auditee: x Yes N̂o 



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 
NEW ORLEANS. LOUISLVNA 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

SECTION II-FINANCLU. STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None 

SECTION m-FED£RAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None 

SECTION IV-STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS 

None 
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To the Board of Commissioners 
Port of New Orleans 

In planning and performing our audit of the fmancial statements of the Board of Commissioners of the 
Port of New Orleans as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, in accordance with auditing standards 
generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Port's intemal control over 
financial reporting (intemal control) as a basis for designing our audit procedures for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port's intemal control. Accordingly, we do not express 
an opinion on the efTectiveness of the Port's mtemal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of several matters as listed in Attachment I that are 
opportunities for strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. We previously reported on the 
Port's intemal control in our Govemment Auditing Stmdards letter dated September 18,2013. This letter 
does not affect our report dated September 18,2013 on the financial statements of the Port. 

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have discussed many 
of these comments and suggestions with management and we will be pleased to discuss them m further 
detail at your convenience. 

The Port's written responses to the comments identified in Attachment I have not been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and accordingly, we express no 
opinion on them. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Commissioners, 
the State of Louisiana and the Legislative Auditor's Office and is not intended to be and should not be 
used by anyone other than tiiese specified parties. However, under Louisiana Revised Statute 24:513, 
tiiis report is distributed by the Legislative Auditor as a public document. 

Metairie, Louisiana 
September 18,2013 

30th Floor - Energy Centre • 1100 Poydras Street • New Orteans. LA 70163-3000 • Tel: 504.569.2978 
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BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR THE PORT OF NEW ORLEANS 

MANAGEMENT LETTER COMMENTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2013 

2013-1 Brazil Financial Audit 

Condition: The Port funds a bank demand deposit account in Brazil for the purpose of funding certain 
expenses related to its development and operating activities in South America. The account is periodically 
reimbursed for expenses submitted by its local representative. At the request of management, the expense 
reimbursement requests for 2002 through 2012 were reviewed by the Intemal Audit department The Port 
noted certain deficiencies in the local representative's recap of supporting documentation and inadequate 
procedures performed in the review process resulting in improper requests and approvals for 
reimbursements over the ten year period. The Port is requesting reimbursement of approximately $68,000, 
of which almost $13,000 has been paid. 

Recommendation: We recommend that the Port establish and monitor a formal poh'cy of reimbursement 
procedures for its branch offices, mcluding monitoring professional contracts and related fees, reconciling 
imprest funds mondily, and obtaining proper and clearly documented supports of business expenses 
submitted for reimbursement 

Management Response and Corrective Action: The local representative has agreed to pay the remainmg 
$55,000 and has signed a payment agreement to do so. Considering the audit findings, the Board will 
review current procedures related to reimbursement procedures, contract compliance, reconciliation of 
fimds and proper supports and will develop a formal policy for the overall control of branch offices and 
imprest accounts. 


